
 
 

 

Tuesday, July 13, 2021 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

            zoom.us/j/91746930314 

 

Meeting ID: 

917 4693 0314 



 

2 
 

a.) Agenda         3 

b.) Minutes of June 17, 2021 Meeting    5 

c.) Bill List: Schedule #829      9 

d.) Management Report       21 

e.) Circulation        23 

f.) Turnstile Count        27  

g.) Electronic Resources       28 

h.) Virtual Programming       31 

i.) In-Building Programming      32 

j.) Quarterly Reports       34 

k.) Book Stock        43 

  



 

3 
 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
AGENDA FOR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 13, 2021 
 
MINUTES   
 

[ACTION ITEM] Approve Minutes of Meeting on June 17, 2021. 
 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
 
UNION REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT  
  
      
WLS REPORT 
 
 
PERSONNEL REPORT 
 
 [ACTION ITEM] 
 Ratify the following appointments: 
 Davis, Kiyah, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 6/18/21 
 Bint-Kadi, Haifa, Provisional Art Gallery Curator, $67,053.00/year, eff. 7/1/21 
 Cardona, Diana, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 7/2/21 
 Ortega, Alessandra, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 7/9/21 
 Varker, Natalie, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 7/6/21 
 

Acknowledge the following terminations: 
Martinez-Guzman, Britney, P/T Page, $14.00/hr, eff. 7/2/21 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
Finance, Budget & Planning- Maron, Jannetti, Saraceno 
 
Employee Relations – Maron, Puglia 
 
Buildings & Grounds – Maron, Puglia, Giuffrida 
 
Policy – Maron, Ilarraza, Sabatino 

 
Fundraising & Development – Maron, Jannetti 
 
Foundation Update  

 
 
RATIFY PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 



 

4 
 

[ACTION ITEM]  Schedule #829 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
   
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Mask Mandate Discussion 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 Director Annual Review 
 
   
NEXT MEETING DATE 
 
 Thursday, September 16, 2021 at a location to be announced 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  



 

5 
 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD MEETING 

ELECTRONIC MEETING 
JUNE 17, 2021 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 

    TRUSTEES: Nancy Maron 
Josephine Ilarraza 
Steven Jannetti  
Joseph Puglia  
John Saraceno 
Hon. Michael Sabatino 
Dr. Stephan Giuffrida 
 

    LIBRARY DIRECTOR: 
 
    BUSINESS MANAGER:                                                                      

Jesse Montero 
 
Vivian Presedo 

  
    ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY: James Hackett 
 
    WLS BOARD REPRESENTATIVE: 

 
Trustee Puglia 

      
    UNION REPRESENTATIVE: 
 
    GUESTS: 

Brandon Neider 
 
Carlos Figueroa, Elizabeth Caruso, Zahra 
Baird, Tyisha Baker, Rose Bannister, 
Arnaldo Torres, Philip Poggiali, Phyllis 
Cole, Eileen Fusco, Rose Avilés, Mary 
Robison 

 
The Board Meeting was held electronically via ZOOM ®, Conference ID# 940 5003 1218 
 
The Board Meeting began at 7:03 pm  
 

 
MINUTES 
 
On motion of Trustee Ilarraza, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved the Minutes 
of the Meeting of May 20, 2021. 
 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 

 Director Montero reported that there had been no new cases of COVID-19 among the staff 
and that YPL’s policies remain unchanged. 
 
Director Montero reported that the Mayor’s proposed executive budget for the fiscal year 
ending in 2022 had been passed by the City Council on May 27. Director Montero was 
pleased with the process and thanked the Mayor and the City Council for a healthy budget 
that values library service, as well as the staff whose outstanding service he believed was 



 

6 
 

appreciated by the Mayor and Council. The budget represents an effective 4% increase 
which restored funding that was cut during the last year, includes funding for a new teen 
services librarian and art gallery curator and increases collection development funding. 
Director Montero also reported that Will Library will receive an additional $200,000 in capital 
funding for elevator repair and refurbishment; Crestwood Library will receive $169,000 in 
capital funding for new roofing, windows and exterior restoration.  
 
Director Montero was pleased to announce that early voting had returned to Riverfront and 
Grinton I. Will. He does not expect turnout for this year’s primary election to be as great as 
last year’s presidential election, however he looked forward to the opportunity for YPL to be 
a part of the democratic process.  
 
Director Montero updated the Board on the “Roots and Branches” partnership with Municipal 
Housing Authority for City of Yonkers (MHACY). Material has been loaned to the offsite 
collection at many of the housing facilities and MHACY coordinators are beginning to plan 
field trips for residents to Riverfront Library. 
 
Director Montero discussed many of YPL’s planned summer reading activities, including the 
summer reading program “Tales and Tails”, the refreshed summer reading list for students 
and the Grab ‘n’ Go summer meal program. Director Montero thanked librarians Z Baird and 
Eileen Fusco for their leadership of many of the summer reading activities. 
 
Director Montero announced that Yonkers Public Library will celebrate Make Music Day for 
the first time on June 21. Make Music Day is a worldwide celebration of music in over 1,000 
cities and 120 countries on the longest day of the year. Several events are scheduled at all 
three buildings as well as Van Der Donck Park.  
 
Director Montero was pleased to announce that Shauna Porteus will be hired as Deputy 
Director following a national search for a candidate. She has over a decade of experience 
in marketing, planning and grant writing at several public libraries and returns to YPL to fill 
the position vacated by Susan Thaler’s retirement after two years managing two branches 
of the San Jose Public Library. Director Montero received a lot of positive staff feedback on 
Shauna’s selection and looks forward to her returning to Yonkers Public Library sometime 
in September.  
 
Trustee Sabatino inquired further about the status of capital funding for the elevator repair 
at Will Library. Director Montero clarified that the $200,000 expected to be received in the 
capital budget was in addition to remaining funds allocated in previous budgets that were 
insufficient to complete the project at the time; he now believes the present expected funding 
levels to be adequate to meet bids for service.  
 
Trustee Saraceno asked what repairs were necessary for the elevator project and how much 
has already been completed; Director Montero replied that shop drawings from an engineer 
were commissioned and Business Manager Presedo added that a shaft fan, gears and 
mechanics original to the building needed to be replaced, as well as the interior of the cab.  
Trustee Saraceno also asked which elevator company might receive the contract; Director 
Montero replied that a request for bids must be made first and he added that all previous 
bids were over budget and as a result the project never got underway. 
 

 
UNION REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT   



 

7 
 

 
President Savarese discussed staff vacancies, especially at Will Library where staff have 
communicated to him the need for help. Director Montero stated that civil service lists have 
been received and the interviewing process has begun. 

 
 
WLS REPORT  
 

Trustee Puglia reported that efforts will be made by WLS in the fall to invite more trustees 
of member libraries to participate in their meetings. Trustee Puglia specifically noted the 
reason for this effort is to increase transparency and involvement. 
 

 
PERSONNEL REPORT  
 
 On motion of Trustee Jannetti, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board ratified the following 
appointments: 
  Marji, Ronjon, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 6/7/21 

Chavis, Armani, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 6/7/21 
 
  The Board acknowledged the following termination: 
  DeWaters, Alice, Librarian II, $77,190.00/year, eff. 6/15/21 (retired) 

Ocansey, James, P/T Page, $14.00/hour, eff. 6/7/21  
 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance, Budget & Planning – Maron, Jannetti, Saraceno  
 
Employee Relations – Maron, Puglia  
 
Buildings & Grounds – Maron, Puglia, Giuffrida 
 
Policy – Maron, Ilarraza, Sabatino  
 
Fundraising & Development – Maron, Jannetti 
 

Foundation update: Trustee Maron shared her enthusiasm for Make Music Day and 
discussed the featured events. She invited the Board to attend and spread the word through 
their networks. 

 
 
PAYMENT OF BILLS  
 
On motion of Trustee Jannetti, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved payment of 
bills as listed on Schedule #827.  
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  

 NONE 



 

8 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
 Board President Maron reminded the Board of the notice made at the last meeting to amend the by-
laws to allow for electronic meetings to continue after Governor Cuomo’s executive order modifying 
open meetings law expires. After an extended discussion on the manner and conduct of meetings in 
the future, the Board, on motion of Trustee Saraceno, seconded and unanimously carried, added 
the following to Article III, Section 1 of the by-laws: 

 
In the event of exceptional circumstances, the Secretary and Board President, together, 
may call for a regularly scheduled meeting to be held by videoconference or electronic 
means if such means are open to the public, have been identified as such in the public 
notice of the meeting, and all trustees are able to see and hear each other clearly at the 
same time.  
 

The Board reviewed and discussed the New York State 2020 Annual Report for Public Association 
Libraries. Trustees Jannetti and Ilarraza asked that their contact information be updated. On motion 
of Trustee Sabatino, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved the above mentioned 
report. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Board President Maron motioned the Board into Executive Session at 7:56 pm to discuss the 
annual evaluation of Director Montero. The session ended at 8:23 pm. Board President Maron 
announced the Board was pleased with Director Montero’s service and would discuss the 
evaluation further at another time.   

 
 
NEXT BOARD MEETING DATE – Thursday, July 15, 2021  
 
 
On motion of Trustee Ilarraza the Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jesse Montero 
Library Director & Secretary 
 
 

 
  



 

9 
 

SCHEDULE: 829         

Yonkers Public Library 

 Bill List June 2021   

Vendor Name 
CAPITAL FUNDS 

Description    Date       Amount 

AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS-CREDIT MEMO 6/28/2021 -15.79 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 17.95 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 26.72 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 47.94 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 51.07 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 59.70 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 60.83 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 65.70 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 70.29 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 91.38 
AMAZON.COM LLC MATERIALS 6/28/2021 122.76 

AMERICAN EXPRESS SOFTWARE & MATERIALS 6/15/2021 1,493.73 

BAKER & TAYLOR MATERIALS 6/28/2021 27,475.68 

BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 40.35 
BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 78.95 
BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 279.87 
BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 299.69 
BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 315.00 
BARNES & NOBLE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 1,327.42 

BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING MATERIALS 6/21/2021 41.60 

DEMCO, INC. BOOK TRUCKS 6/21/2021 17,659.45 

EBSCO MATERIALS-CREDIT MEMO 6/28/2021 -185.00 
EBSCO MATERIALS-CREDIT MEMO 6/28/2021 -40.00 
EBSCO MATERIALS-CREDIT MEMO 6/28/2021 -10.00 
EBSCO MATERIALS 6/28/2021 246.35 

GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL PICNIC TABLES 6/28/2021 1,673.64 

INGRAM MATERIALS 6/28/2021 16.16 
INGRAM MATERIALS 6/28/2021 21.83 
INGRAM MATERIALS 6/21/2021 39.72 

LECTORUM PUBLICATIONS, INC. MATERIALS 6/15/2021 38.40 

MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 6.99 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 9.74 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 11.24 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 11.99 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 23.79 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 24.74 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 34.99 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 45.46 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 45.47 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 50.96 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 64.34 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 64.38 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 65.74 



 

10 
 

MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 76.95 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 80.44 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 103.58 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 122.40 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 125.94 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 128.75 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 142.74 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 151.10 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 158.81 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/15/2021 220.37 
MIDWEST TAPE MATERIALS 6/28/2021 343.51 

MULTICULTURAL BOOKS & VIDEOS FOREIGN LANGUAGE-WILL/ADULT 6/28/2021 303.05 

NATIONALL BUS FURNITURE, LLC FURNITURE (DESK) 6/28/2021 791.10 

OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/28/2021 12.99 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/21/2021 261.95 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/15/2021 600.42 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/21/2021 673.47 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/15/2021 907.25 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/28/2021 993.94 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/21/2021 1,023.31 
OVERDRIVE, INC. MATERIALS 6/21/2021 1,232.94 

TOTAL   60,326.23 

    

Vendor Name 

CONTRIBUTIONS FUNDS 

Description    Date       Amount 

AMERICAN EXPRESS MAKE MUSIC DAY/NETWORK SOLS 6/30/2021 329.79 

BERGAMINI, GINA ADULT BELLY DANCE ZOOM (4) 6/30/2021 200.00 

CLIFTON, MICHELLE SOUND MEDITATION ZOOM 6/30/2021 100.00 

GENTLE GIANT MUSIC MAKE MUSIC DAY PROG 6/21/21 6/21/2021 300.00 

GOVCONNECTION, INC. TONER CARTRIDGES 6/16/2021 3,956.15 

LE HEALTH INC. YOGA FOR YOGIS-CRESTWOOD 6/30/2021 75.00 

PORTEUS, SHAUNA REIMB EXP: DEP DIR INTERVIEW 6/11/2021 1,349.10 

PROJECTME, LLC MINDFUL YOGA-CRESTWOOD 6/30/2021 450.00 

REILLY, SHANNON VIRTUAL YOGA-CRESTWOOD 6/30/2021 75.00 

SAW MILL RIVER AUDUBON PRES: RAPTORS FOR ROOKIES 6/16/2021 100.00 

SYNERGISTIC FITNESS SOLUTIONS SENIOR STRETCH CLASS ZOOM (3) 6/30/2021 150.00 

WALLACE, MARTIN MAKE MUSIC DAY PROG 6/21/2021 6/30/2021 300.00 

YONKERS PARKING AUTHORITY KISHAUNA SOLJOUR PARKING 6/30/2021 278.49 

TOTAL   7,663.53 

 



 

11 
 

 

  



 

12 
 

  



 

13 
 

  



 

14 
 

  



 

15 
 

  



 

16 
 

  



 

17 
 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY UNAVAILABLE 

  



 

18 
 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR JULY 1, 2020-JUNE 30, 2021 
REVENUE  

Revenue Category        Budgeted Revenue            Revenue Realized 
                   2020-2021      7/1/2020-6/30/2021 

  

  6/30/2021 

Fees & Fines $51,000 $661 

Rental of Property 11,000 300 

Miscellaneous (Includes E-Rate) 41,050 0 

 __________ __________ 
Total Library Generated Revenues $103,050 $961 

State Funding 47,560 45,909 

Transfer from City of Yonkers General Fund 9,497,773 9,497,773 
Transfer from Library Fund 811,831 811,831 

 __________ __________ 
Total  $10,460,214 $10,356,474 
 
 

  



 

19 
 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 

QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR JULY 1, 2020-JUNE 30, 2021 

GRANTS FUNDS 

 AMOUNT AMOUNT 

 AWARDED AVAILABLE 

6/30/2021 

 

DANY 250,000 40,366 

* SED-LDA 211,412 148,468 

 MONTEFIORE ADDITION 95,475 2,496 

 SED-LDA (2) 211,412 183,559 

 WILL SPACE STUDY 25,000 2,550 

 CBG RF TEEN ROOM 30,000 0 
* City had not applied final payment. 
  



 

20 
 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 

QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR JULY 1, 2020-JUNE 30, 2021 
CAPITAL FUNDS 

  ORIGINAL AMOUNT 

C2099CP 

 AMOUNT AVAILABLE 

6/30/2021 

510647 Will Auditorium Improv. 55,000 48,229 

510874 Boiler Upgrades 568,000 53,504 

510931 Elevator Replacement 412,000 397,500 

510956 Library Books and other Equipment 450,000 0 

511000 Acquisition of Library Books and other materials 900,000 870,252 

511001 Acquisition of a Truck 49,081 0 

 

  



 

21 
 

Management Report 

Board Meeting 

July 13, 2021 

 

COVID-19 Updates: There have been no reported cases of COVID-19 among library workers 

since the last board meeting. Since the last board meeting, the City of Yonkers lifted its mask 

requirements for fully vaccinated employees, along with other COVID-19 emergency protocols. 

On July 6, 2021, YPL allowed fully vaccinated employees to be maskless in non-public service 

areas and during non-public service hours. YPL is currently considering further steps to loosen 

mask requirements, which will be discussed at the July board meeting. 

 

Make Music Day: On June 21st, YPL and Foundation for Yonkers Public Library (FYPL) 

participated in Make Music Day, a global celebration held in over 1,000 cities and 120 different 

countries. This was Yonkers’ first year participating in the event. It hosted nine in-person 

performances across all three locations, as well as two virtual events. In total, hundreds of 

attendees and passersby engaged with the events. YPL and FYPL are planning on how to 

continue offering this event, with more city coordination, in future years. 

 

Will Library Pollinator Garden: Thanks to support from Westchester County Legislator Ruth 

Walter and the Board of Legislators, YPL received $18,000 in funding to create and maintain a 

native plant and pollinator garden. YPL contracted with Groundwork Hudson Valley, whose 

Green Team removed weeds and other invasive plant species, laid down wood chips, and 

planted native plants attractive to pollinating bird and insect species. In coming weeks 

Groundwork will install benches to complete the project and serve as an outdoor programming 

and reading space. YPL hopes to continue its partnership with Ruth Walter and Groundwork 

Hudson Valley to further reshape the Will Library grounds. 

 

Arts Programming: Earlier this month, Haifa Bint-Kadi joined YPL as its full-time art gallery 

curator. In this role, she will be charged with enhancing YPL's art exhibitions, programming 

and elevating its profile in the Yonkers artistic community. She has already begun to increase 

the amount of programming. In June, Ms. Bint-Kadi was recognized by Mayor Spano for her 

public artwork which was recently installed at the Yonkers Greenway.  

 

Grant Updates: New York Presbyterian Lawrence Hospital awarded Will Library a $2,500 

grant in recognition of its health and wellness programming over the last year. ArtsWestchester 

also awarded YPL and its partner ArchForKids an “Arts Alive Project Grant” for $1,500 to offer 

four STEM-related children’s programs that reference the Summer Reading 2021 theme of 

“Tails and Tales.” 

 

Summer Services: As of July 21, 2021, Riverfront Library and Will Library will both serve as 

Yonkers Public Schools (YPS) Grab N’ Go summer meal sites. Summer Reading Buddies has 

begun to offer once-a-week, reservation-only arts and crafts classes at Riverfront Library. YPL 



 

22 
 

librarians are working with YPS teachers and librarians to promote summer reading through 

summer school and professional development opportunities. 

 

Extreme Weather and Library Service: Yonkers has already experienced heat waves and 

severe storms this summer. These extreme weather events, combined with YPL’s aging 

infrastructure, present public service challenges, especially since libraries should be cooling 

and charging “resiliency” centers at such times. Severe rain caused leaking with the 

Crestwood Library’s roof, and the Will Library’s outdated and unreliable HVAC system make it 

difficult to ensure adequate cooling when the community needs it. These conditions make 

capital infrastructure investments even more important. 

 



 

23 
 

 

  

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Present 12 month period 45281 52569 48249 47643 40546 35009 33647 34128 39894 39992 39180 44515

Previous 12 month period 77481 81689 67036 69319 62605 61094 65766 64816 37052 11424 11111 13859

-41.6% -35.6% -28.0% -31.3% -35.2% -42.7% -48.8% -47.3% 7.7% 250.1% 252.6% 221.2%

Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-20 Jun-21

_audiobook 45 732 687 0.3% 1.6%

_biography 78 434 356 0.6% 1.0%

_express 10 338 328 0.1% 0.8%

_fiction 648 6088 5440 4.7% 13.7%

_foreign_language 18 259 241 0.1% 0.6%

_juv_audiobook 11 63 52 0.1% 0.1%

_juv_fiction 488 8677 8189 3.5% 19.5%

_juv_foreign 8 181 173 0.1% 0.4%

_juv_movie 70 1027 957 0.5% 2.3%

_juv_nonfiction 78 1387 1309 0.6% 3.1%

_magazine 0 227 227 0.0% 0.5%

_movie 541 6699 6158 3.9% 15.0%

_music 166 1976 1810 1.2% 4.4%

_new_book 261 2017 1756 1.9% 4.5%

_nonfiction 382 4095 3713 2.8% 9.2%

_ya_av 12 197 185 0.1% 0.4%

_ya_fiction 141 1671 1530 1.0% 3.8%

_ya_nonfiction 23 274 251 0.2% 0.6%

_Electronic Content Use 10853 7671 -3182 -29.3% 78.31% 17.23% -61.1%_Electronic Content Use

9.0%

0.5%

0.4%

2.7%

0.4%

0.1%

16.0%

0.3%

1.8%

2.6%

0.5%

11.1%

3.2%

2.6%

6.4%

_new_book

_nonfiction

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

_ya_nonfiction

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_music

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

_juv_foreign

_audiobook

_biography

_express

Circulation Profile:

1.3%

0.4%

0.7%

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

90000

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Present 12 month period Previous 12 month period



 

24 
 

  

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Present 12 Month Period 8644 10739 9807 9186 7995 5654 5579 5533 7584 6928 6918 8405

Previous 12 Month Period 22931 25192 19736 21240 17738 16212 16888 17557 8554 491 9 650

-62.3% -57.4% -50.3% -56.8% -54.9% -65.1% -67.0% -68.5% -11.3%

Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-20 Jun-21

_audiobook 9 148 139 1.4% 1.8%

_biography 13 101 88 2.0% 1.2%

_express 3 132 129 0.5% 1.6%

_fiction 124 1282 1158 19.1% 15.3%

_foreign_language 7 161 154 1.1% 1.9%

_juvenile_audiobook 1 4 3 0.2% 0.0%

_juvenile_fiction 80 1693 1613 12.3% 20.1%

_juvenile_foreign 1 89 88 0.2% 1.1%

_juvenile_movie 35 154 119 5.4% 1.8%

_juvenile_nonfiction 9 259 250 1.4% 3.1%

_magazine 0 11 11 0.0% 0.1%

_movie 146 1541 1395 22.5% 18.3%

_music 12 368 356 1.8% 4.4%

_new_book 60 240 180 9.2% 2.9%

_nonfiction 79 1128 1049 12.2% 13.4%

_young_adult_av 8 89 81 1.2% 1.1%

_young_adult_fiction 45 625 580 6.9% 7.4%

_young_adult_nonfiction 5 59 54 0.8% 0.7%

_audiobook

_biography

_express

0.4%

-0.8%

1.1%

Circulation Profile:

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juvenile_audiobook

_juvenile_fiction

_juvenile_foreign

_juvenile_movie

_juvenile_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_music

_new_book

_nonfiction

_young_adult_av

_young_adult_fiction

_young_adult_nonfiction

-3.8%

0.8%

-0.1%

7.8%

0.9%

-3.6%

1.7%

0.1%

-4.1%

2.5%

-6.4%

1.3%

-0.2%

0.5%

-0.1%

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Present 12 Month Period Previous 12 Month Period



 

25 
 

  

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Present 12 month period20880 27527 25283 24861 19726 15789 16573 17752 21019 22280 20815 24351

Previous 12 month period39635 42145 34552 35766 33251 32841 35005 34799 17208 37 25 2033

-47.3% -34.7% -26.8% -30.5% -40.7% -51.9% -52.7% -49.0% 22.1%

Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-20 Jun-21

_audiobook 32 513 481 1.6% 2.1%

_biography 48 260 212 2.4% 1.1%

_express 6 172 166 0.3% 0.7%

_fiction 439 4065 3,626 21.6% 16.7%

_foreign_language 11 92 81 0.5% 0.4%

_juv_audiobook 7 51 44 0.3% 0.2%

_juv_fiction 320 6194 5,874 15.7% 25.4%

_juv_foreign 7 88 81 0.3% 0.4%

_juv_movie 33 808 775 1.6% 3.3%

_juv_nonfiction 56 911 855 2.8% 3.7%

_magazine 0 131 131 0.0% 0.5%

_movie 363 4574 4,211 17.9% 18.8%

_music 152 1518 1,366 7.5% 6.2%

_new_book 178 1287 1,109 8.8% 5.3%

_nonfiction 268 2425 2,157 13.2% 10.0%

_ya_av 1 70 69 0.0% 0.3%

_ya_fiction 88 893 805 4.3% 3.7%

_ya-nonfiction 12 144 132 0.6% 0.6%

Circulation Profile:

_audiobook

_biography

_express

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

_juv_foreign

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

-1.2%

-3.5%

-3.2%

_music

_new_book

_nonfiction

0.2%

-0.7%

0.0%_ya-nonfiction

0.5%

-1.3%

0.4%

-4.9%

-0.2%

-0.1%

9.7%

0.0%

1.7%

1.0%

0.5%

0.9%

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Present 12 month period Previous 12 month period



 

26 
 

  

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Present 12 month period4208 3778 3663 3663 3180 3602 3319 3290 3549 3412 3517 4088

Previous 12 month period7074 6990 6063 6210 5539 4823 6300 5617 2540 2 11 323

-40.5% -46.0% -39.6% -41.0% -42.6% -25.3% -47.3% -41.4% 39.7%

Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-20 Jun-21

_audiobook 4 71 67 1.2% 1.7%

_biography 17 73 56 5.3% 1.8%

_express 1 34 33 0.3% 0.8%

_fiction 85 741 656 26.3% 18.1%

_foreign_language 0 6 6 0.0% 0.1%

_juv_audiobook 3 8 5 0.9% 0.2%

_juv_fiction 88 790 702 27.2% 19.3%

_juv_foreign 0 4 4 0.0% 0.1%

_juv_movie 2 65 63 0.6% 1.6%

_juv_nonfiction 13 217 204 4.0% 5.3%

_magazine 0 85 85 0.0% 2.1%

_movie 32 584 552 9.9% 14.3%

_music 2 90 88 0.6% 2.2%

_nonfiction 35 542 507 10.8% 13.3%

_new_book 23 490 467 7.1% 12.0%

_ya_av 3 38 35 0.9% 0.9%

_ya_fiction 8 153 145 2.5% 3.7%

_ya_nonfiction 6 71 65 1.9% 1.7%

Circulation Profile:

0.5%

-3.5%

0.5%

-8.2%

0.1%

-0.7%

-7.9%

0.0%

1.3%

0.1%

1.0%

1.3%

2.1%

4.4%

_music

_nonfiction

_new_book

1.6%

2.4%

4.9%

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

_ya_nonfiction -0.1%

_audiobook

_biography

_express

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

_juv_foreign

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Present 12 month period Previous 12 month period



 

27 
 

 

  Riverfront Grinton I. Will Crestwood 
YPL Total 

Count 
  Count Hours 

Per 
Hour Count Hours 

Per 
Hour Count Hours 

Per 
Hour 

Jun-20          - 

Jul-20 6,052 133 46 5,837 133 44 399 29 14 12,288 

Aug-20 11,865 198 60 15,460 198 78 390 48 8 27,715 

Sep-20 11,284 202 56 15,236 202 75 574 51 11 27,094 

Oct-20 9,999 203 49 15,214 194 78 435 48 9 25,648 

Nov-20 6,186 112 55 7,918 84 94 398 33 12 14,502 

Dec-20 887 47.5 19 1,192 47.5 25 -  0 2,079 

Jan-21 3,319 103 32    -  0 3,319 

Feb-21 4,133 110 38    -  0 4,133 

Mar-21 6,268 151 42 5,460 130 42 -  0 11,728 

Apr-21 6,670 158 42 6,845 158 43 -  0 13,515 

May-21 8,015 200 40 9,215 207 45 473 100 5 17,703 

Jun-21 9,599 218 44 10,219 218 47 823 109 8 20,641 

 

Source: Gate counters at public entrances of all three buildings. Figures include staff entries and exits. 

Notes: Total Monthly Patrons in January-February incomplete due to gate counter malfunction at Grinton I. Will. 

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
u
n
t 
(Y

P
L
)

C
o
u
n
t 
p
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

o
u
r 

(b
ra

n
c
h
)

YPL Total Count Riverfront Grinton I. Will Crestwood



 

28 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Daily OverDrive Checkouts

Adult Fiction Average (7-Day) Adult Non-Fiction Average (7-Day) Juvenile Fiction Average (7-Day)

Juvenile Non-Fiction Average (7-Day) Y/A Fiction Average (7-Day) Y/A Non-Fiction Average (7-Day)

Adult 

Fiction

Adult 

Non-Fiction

Juvenile 

Fiction

Juvenile 

Non-Fiction

Y/A 

Fiction

Y/A 

Non-Fiction TOTAL

Jun-20 3960 1402 1201 130 432 29 7154

Jul-20 4039 1396 1568 103 499 62 7667

Aug-20 3981 1370 1285 96 514 42 7288

Sep-20 3519 1198 1213 64 387 22 6403

Oct-20 3734 1239 1125 90 343 17 6548

Nov-20 3501 1165 868 80 404 17 6035

Dec-20 3564 1269 891 77 448 16 6265

Jan-21 3795 1471 1073 118 473 34 6964

Feb-21 3530 1353 960 116 415 35 6409

Mar-21 3685 1343 1053 118 417 22 6638

Apr-21 3525 1290 931 60 452 19 6277

May-21 4063 1253 1042 92 446 20 6916

Jun-21 3877 1298 825 72 518 32 6622



 

29 
 

Jun-20 Jul-20
Aug-
20

Sep-
20

Oct-20
Nov-
20

Dec-
20

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21
May-
21

Jun-21

Enrollments 74 62 33 42 62 40 12 65 52 46 30 43 21

Log-ins 681 471 433 267 307 357 263 334 434 400 261 227 172

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

L
o
g
-i
n

s

E
n
ro

llm
e
n
ts

Gale Courses

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Hours spent 1486 1067 974 460 539 704 438 728 927 803 414 453 375

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Gale Courses



 

30 
 

 
Jun-

20 
Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Jan-
21 

Feb-
21 

Mar-
21 

Apr-
21 

May-
21 

Jun-
21 

              

Total Sessions: 293 243 312 263 298 250 249 366 385 421 399 291 299 

Total Course Uses: 283 203 278 266 316 255 245 340 372 436 348 259 313 

Mobile Sessions: 154 113 190 167 156 99 103 219 225 247 235 197 212 

Avg Session Length (min): 12 15 17 13 15 14 13 17 17 18 17 18 19 

Total Learning Time (hours): 60.4 60.1 89.4 56.5 75.4 59.6 55.4 102.1 106.4 124.1 113.9 86.2 92.7 

              

COURSES 

ESL Spanish (Latin American) 53 52 82 27 54 16 17 35 74 101 71 55 72 

Spanish, Latin American 87 59 99 95 130 111 121 104 99 93 67 46 66 

Chinese, Mandarin 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 1 0 16 35 44 48 

Japanese 14 16 18 15 19 9 2 29 50 47 45 36 40 

Arabic, Levantine 7 3 2 20 12 1 7 11 7 5 20 14 25 

Italian 13 4 7 3 30 29 23 24 28 21 8 4 22 

Russian 24 18 10 43 11 9 5 11 7 51 29 31 14 

Hindi 3 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 25 31 29 11 10 

German 26 10 10 7 1 5 6 0 5 22 0 1 6 
ESL Spanish - Lenguaje de 
Text 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Icelandic 0 0 0 12 3 0 4 3 3 0 1 1 2 

Medical, Spanish 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 

Arabic, MSA 1 1 0 0 1 12 24 12 1 0 2 0 1 

Jerichow 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Pirate 1 0 0 1 3 2 2 3 3 0 1 0 1 

Text Talk 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 2 1 1 0 1 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

T
o

ta
l
Se

ss
io

n
s

Mango Languages



 

31 
 

Total Programs Total Attendance 

2,027 37,382 

NOTE: Through June 30. Attendance on non-Zoom platforms represent estimates. 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

D
a
ily

 P
ro

g
ra

m
s

YPL Virtual Programming Sessions

Virtual Programs Rolling Monthly Average

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

D
a
ily

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e

YPL Virtual Programming Attendance

Daily Attendance Rolling Monthly Average



 

32 
 

      

LIBRARY PROGRAMS     
Date Sessions Program Age STEM? Class Visit? Attendance 

  6 Digital Equity Now Cohort 2 Adult YES   96 

    Grab-n-Go Tail/Tale of the Week Y/A     144 

6/30/2021   Heat Wave Film Series: Disney Double Feature: Mulan (2020; PG-13) Y/A     20 

6/30/2021   Heat Wave Film Series: Disney Double Feature: Up (PG) JUV     28 

6/29/2021   Heat Wave Film Series: Knives Out (PG-13) Y/A     4 

  26 Higher Power Exhibit Adult     358 

6/16/2021   In Person Event: Psychic Medium Reading with Joan Carra Adult     22 

6/24/2021   Keys to Healthy Living with Tarsha Gibbons- In person Walk  Adult     15 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day Presents : The Rivertown String Quartet Adult     20 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day Storytime with Mr. Ralph! JUV     30 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day: Carla and Keyes JUV     31 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day: GROOVE COLLECTIVE Adult     30 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day: Sarah Jane Cion Group Adult     30 

6/21/2021   Make Music Day: Sing the Blues with MJ TerritoMJ Territo Adult     30 

6/23/2021   PRIDE @ Your Library Presents:  SUPERNOVA  - RATED R Adult     7 

6/22/2021   PRIDE @ Your Library Presents: Love Simon - rated pg13 Y/A     12 

6/29/2021   Storytime with Mr. Ralph - In-person  JUV     1 

  15 Study Hall for adults & teens Y/A     39 

6/28/2021   Two Tails/Tales at 11 Y/A     13 

6/29/2021   Yonkers African American Heritage Committee Adult     25 

       

   STEM Class Visits 

   Sessions Attendance Sessions Attendance 

   6 96 0 0 

       

   Sessions Attendance 

  Adult 10 633 

  Y/A 6 232 

  JUV 4 90 

       

  Total Regular Library Programming 63 955 

NON-LIBRARY PROGRAMMING 
    

Date Program Attendance Fee 

1 Literacy Solutions : Learning Center 53 $0 

5 Literacy Solutions: Citizenship class   69 $0 

24 Literacy Solutions Services  58 $0 

67 Literacy Solutions :Tutors  137 $0 

2 US Census - Staff Training  90 $0 

3 Yonkers Public Schools - Department of Research, E 175 $0 

1 Shaquille Brown - Interview / Room 4B 1 $0 

2 MTA Police - MTA Explorers Program  32 $0 

9 Westchester County Board of Elections - Early Voting  400 $0 

2 Yonkers Public Schools - Division of Language Aquisitions 45 $0 

1 Yonkers Public Schools - Superintendent's Office (Cabinet Meeting)  55 $0 

1 Yonkers Public Schools - Health Services (School Nurses meet with Dr.Rabadi)  55 $0 

1 JCY-WCP Family Service Society of Yonkers -Reading Buddies Grab and Go  55 $0 

1 Yonkers Police Department - Recruitment  15 $0 

1 MBE Meet and Greet 40 $0 

    

  Sessions Att. 
 Total Non-Library Programming 105 1280 

    

 GRAND TOTAL PROGRAMMING 168 2235 



 

33 
 

     

LIBRARY PROGRAMS   
Date Program Age STEM? Class Visit? Attendance 

6/2 Will Teen Green Team Y/A YES   10 

6/9 Will Teen Green Team Y/A YES   4 

6/16 Will Teen Green Team Y/A YES   4 

6/19 Teen Advisory Group Y/A     14 

6/21 Make Music Day with Desy Murphy Y/A     42 

6/21 Music with Zev JUV     26 

6/21 Music with Stephanic Trio ADULT     15 

6/24 Keys to Healthy Living/YOM Walking with Will ADULT   19 

6/24 Bingo ADULT     2 

      

  STEM Class Visits 

  Sessions Attendance Sessions Attendance 

  3 18 0 0 

      

  Sessions Attendance 
 Adult 3 36 

 Y/A 5 74 

 JUV 1 26 

      

 Total Regular Library Programming 9 136 
 

NON-LIBRARY PROGRAMMING 
    
Date Program Attendance Fee 

6/1 Yonkers Police Dept-Recruitment 25   

6/2 Department of Public Works 40   

6/3 Department of Public Works 40   

6/4 Department of Public Works 40   

6/7 Department of Public Works 35   

6/8 Department of Public Works 30   

6/9 Department of Public Works 30   

6/9 SEIU 704 36   

6/10 Department of Public Works 35   

6/12 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/13 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/14 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/15 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/16 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/17 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/18 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/19 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/20 Early Voting-Primary 63   

6/23 Department of Public Works 40   

6/24 Department of Public Works 40   

6/25 Department of Public Works 30   

6/28 Department of Public Works 40   

6/29 Department of Public Works 35   

6/30 Department of Public Works 30   

    

  Sessions Att. 

 Total Non-Library Programming 24 1093 

    

 GRAND TOTAL PROGRAMMING 32 1210 



 

34 
 

RIVERFRONT LIBRARY 

APRIL, MAY, AND JUNE 2021 

 

 

The Riverfront Library has served the city of Yonkers through good times and bad times. The past year brought 

forth unprecedented challenges, both for us and for our patrons, but we quickly adapted, to ensure that our 

patrons could continue to rely on the Library’s essential services. Indeed,the COVID-19 pandemic reinforced and 

accelerated trends in the Library’s investments in digital resources and services 

 

As demonstrated during the quarter under review, our efforts to serve the city of Yonkers amid challenges define 

who we are as an institution. When we are forced apart, we always find opportunities for connection and 

community, whether in our branches or online. The past quarter has demonstrated the Library’s remarkable role 

in bringing together the City’s neighborhoods.  

 

Programming 

Providing individuals with unfettered access to information and opportunity is one of the greatest ways to 

empower and engage them. Programs for All  is thus the centerpiece of our mission, whether it’s a matter of 

getting patrons career-ready, of teaching them technology, or of connecting them to various other critical skills. 

During the last quarter, our in-person programs, including movies in the Auditorium, logged an attendance figure 

of  more than 1,500. And of course we continued during the quarter to present virtual programs, including 

sessions on technology training, job coaching, Zumba, Qi Gong, genealogy, and healthy living. 

 

Dr. Kishauna Soljour, Sarah Lawrence College/Mellon Humanities Fellow, and Mary Robison, the head of the 

Riverfront Reference Department, hosted several talks to engage the Yonkers and the Sarah Lawrence College 

communities, including a celebration of Poetry Month and an exploration of public art in Yonkers. 

 

Inspired by fresh ideas to engage the community, and for each month during the quarter, our branch’s Reference 

Department developed and prepared 150 “Grab & Go” craft projects to distribute to patrons at all three branches. 

These gifts included umbrellas, eco-friendly bird feeders, wind chimes, painted flower pots, and “summer sun 

packs” for kids. 

 

Teen Librarian Eileen Fusco collaborated with the Yonkers Public Schools to refresh and update the summer 

reading list for children and teens with the addition of new print and electronic titles. She also updated the online 

summer reading program, READSquared, with new reading lists, programs, and school assignments. 

 

More than 300 youngsters attended our teen programs during the quarter, participating in practice SAT and ACT 

exam sessions, in poetry, and in scavenger hunts. The Library also hosted an informal “teen hangout” each week 

on Tuesday.. Upcoming summer programs for teens will include film screenings, crafts, and bilingual story 

recordings. 

 

Children’s Programming 

The Riverfront Library plays an essential role in supporting children of all ages to help them develop a lifelong 

love of reading. Taking to cyberspace to reach this goal during COVID were Children’s Department Librarians 

Ralph Guida, with Father Goose Time and Arch for Kids, and Renee Rabadi, who co-hosted Arch for Kids as well 

as hosting Zumba for Kids.. 

 

The Department celebrated Earth Day in April with a sustainable craft program created by Mya Green-Arias and 

Tara Somersall. The event was very well attended. 



 

35 
 

 

 

On June 21, the Yonkers Public Library celebrated Make Music Day for the first time. The Riverfront Children’s 

Department hosted Carla and Keyes, who performed a medley of songs and read stories to the kids. It was a very 

successful  program for the children who had had to stay home for such a very long time during the pandemic. 

 

Notary Service 

Children’s Department Librarian Ralph Guida is a state-certified notary public. As such, and without charging a 

fee, he notarizes documents for the Library’s patrons; 45 documents were notarized during the quarter. (The 

notary service is available only by appointment.)  

 

Local History 

Intern Charlie Loftus began work in the Local History archives. She will review the vertical files, rehouse and 

provide additional description for the collection. Charlie will also be working with Dr. Soljour and Yonkers teens to 

produce podcasts for a local history series, Histories of Change, Continuity, and Community: Yonkers. This 

podcast series examines the entwined relationship among people, places, and ideas that shape the city of 

Yonkers. 

 

Community Engagement 

The Riverfront staff continued during this difficult time to maintain our partnerships with other community 

organizations so that, together with them, we can work to make a difference in people's lives. Worthy of note are 

the following initiatives: 

 

Vaccine registration.  

Continuing the effort from the first quarter of the year through to April, the Riverfront Reference staff assisted 

patrons in registering for appointments to receive the COVID-19 vaccine. 

 

MHACY “ Roots and Branches” deposit collections.  

The Riverfront Library Reference and Circulation staff partnered with MHACY service coordinators to establish 

small book collections at several public housing locations in the city. Each coordinator, moreover, has a space in 

the Circulation department to house his or her collection. 

 

Westhab Collaboration.  

The Reference Department is working with Westhab to host a weekly visit from a Westhab social worker to assist 

patrons with housing, health care, and other services they need help with. 

 

IB (International Baccalaureate) Day.  

Mary Robison collaborated with educators from Yonkers High School and with librarians from Sarah Lawrence 

College to present a third bibliographic instruction session for Yonkers High School IB students. Mary and Eileen 

Fusco will continue to work with the students on their research during the summer. 

 

In addition to these community involvements, Branch Administrator Sandy Amoyaw has continued to attend, via 

ZOOM, meetings with the Salvation Army and the Yonkers Rotary International. Lawrence Farah, too, has 

continued to work with the Yonkers Rotary International (an organization of which he is a member); and he also 

attended the Juneteenth event at Trevor park. Arnaldo Torres has continued his service on the YMCA Board of 

Trustees. Librarian Eugene Howell continues as the Library’s liaison with the Community Network, sharing current 

information throughout the YPL e-mail system on social services available to Yonkers residents. 

 

Collection Development 



 

36 
 

 

The Riverfront staff continues to devote time and thought to the task of collection development. We continue to 

augment our collections with new offerings in graphic novels, in urban fiction, and in Spanish-language materials. 

We also added titles to the Arabic-language collection in the Children's Department. 

 

Staff Development 

Members of the Riverfront staff are encouraged to participate in professional development workshops to enhance 

their job performance. To this end, the Reference Department staff took part in training to learn about 

improvements to WLS’s High School Equivalency programs, and Tara Somersall and Renee Rabadi participated 

in the Summer Reading Refresh Project.  Staff also participated in training on various digital resources; on 

locating U.S. Census data; on creating standards for successful customer service; on building a socially-

responsible library collection; on assisting unsheltered patrons; and on issues of diversity, equity, and inclusion. 

 

Library Displays 

Book displays in the Library help to create an inviting, informative, and effective learning environment. Such 

displays and bulletin boards can also play a vital role in boosting circulation rates. Displays during the second 

quarter included Wellness Activities, Summer Reading, the American with Disabilities Act, LGBTQ+ Pride Month, 

D-Day, Memorial Day, Mother’s Day, Earth Day, Poetry Month, National Library Week, Stress Awareness, and 

Small Business. Also high-lighted through displays were the Library’s collection of mysteries and graphic novels. 

 

At a time like this, we all need to be there for one another, to support one another and to support the Yonkers 

community to which we are committed.. Thank you, Riverfront Library staff, for your continued assistance to our 

patrons during this quarter. We continue to push through these challenges with grace and positivity. 

 

 

Sandy Ernest Amoyaw 

Branch Administrator 

  



 

37 
 

 
 

GRINTON I. WILL LIBRARY 
APRIL—JUNE 2021 

 

Grinton I. Will library is working on becoming more environmentally friendly, inside and out. We are extremely 

grateful for the funding provided by Ruth Walter, Westchester County Legislator, for a sustainability project on our 

grounds. We were happy to partner with Groundwork Hudson Valley which helped identify an undeveloped area on 

the east side of the Library to convert into an attractive pollinator garden and outdoor space for patrons.  GWHV 

led a ten-person green team event to remove invasive plants, prepare the soil and path, and plant native plants. In 

preparation for our environmentally friendly outdoor space, our teens were given the opportunity to earn community 

service hours and join our very own green team.  Bob Walters and Rose Aviles spoke with the group about the 

environment and the children’s department educated the students on how to read stories to children in preparation 

for outdoor programs. GWHV showed our volunteers how to plant, check soil, and remove the weeds. We hope to 

partner with many more environmental community leaders to inspire our youth.   

It is very meaningful when the community recognizes the value of the work we do and the impact we make in the 

lives of our patrons. We were extremely honored that the leadership at New York-Presbyterian Lawrence Hospitals 

awarded $2500.00 to the Will Library in support of community programs.  Ruth Walter recognized the hard work of 

the staff with a Certificate of Appreciation for providing many services throughout the pandemic.  One of our frequent 

patrons called the Branch Administrator to praise the Adult/Reference department for all that they had done for her 

during this past year. Whenever she needed to access computers, use the private computer room for interviews 

and training and needed help navigating the technology, the staff always said yes and never hesitated.   Alan 

Houston received a thank you note from a patron expressing happiness for a large print title she received through 

the library by mail program. 

Many city agencies requested in person meetings and events and we were able to provide them with meeting 
spaces. The Fire Department swore in new recruits in April, and the City of Yonkers DPW provided OSHA training 
to their staff in our auditorium. Early Voting for the primaries took place for nine days in the lower lobby and the 
Yonkers Police Department staffed a recruitment table providing information to the public on the upcoming police 
officer exam. We are grateful to the patrons, City of Yonkers employees, library staff and patrons who provided 
honest, necessary and essential feedback during the KG &D listening sessions.  These sessions helped create a 
five year plan that will help us focus on capital improvements and interior and exterior renovations for the Will 
Library. We partnered with the Alzheimer’s Association to host a virtual Yonkers Community Forum, where patrons 
learned about the disease and dementia, and community leaders provided feedback as to how to help those in our 
communities. 
 
The summer is quickly approaching and the children’s and young adult staff were busy preparing. They 
recommended new materials for the Yonkers Schools reading lists and ordered, processed and labelled the titles 
purchased. They were also busy weeding the existing collection.   They staffed the Summer Reading table to 
encourage patrons to sign-up for the program and they helped explain the READsquared app and registration 
process and provided information about our summer programs.  A  Tails and Tales Summer Reading Lego Movie 
was created by Miss Aili introducing this year’s theme, and the circulation staff descended upon the children’s 
department to get the shelves ready for the busy season by shelf reading and edging.   Summer program information 
was shared with School 24 to be shared at the school’s parent workshop. 

Patrons were ready to venture outdoors and enjoy entertainment. During the citywide music celebration, Make 
Music Day, the musical performers who made us tap our feet and clap our hands included, Zev Haber, children’s 
musician, and Desy Murphy, who performed a  solo acoustic  set of popular  folk, country and rock songs.  Patrons 
can now checkout an outdoor adventure, The Lunetta Explorer Bag (birding bag).  It contains binoculars, bird and 
tree ID cards, bug boxes, activity cards, and magnifying glasses.  We hope to encourage a love for the outdoors, 
nature, environment, hiking and walking,  and family time. 
 



 

38 
 

 
The staff hosted a variety of programs that included: Thinking of Starting Your Own Business, Start, Manage and 
Grow Your Business with Reference Solutions; Exploring Eighteenth-Century Westchester Through Invention; Bird 
Neighbors; Walk with Will;, Carnegie Libraries; Raptors for Rookies; Gardening with Native Plants: Why and How; 
Bingo Outdoor; Storytime with Miss Aili; Robert the Guitar Guy, Music with Munchkins; Cartooning with Mike Teator; 
and Discusión sobre vacunas contra COVID-19.  The teen advisory group finally met in person and utilized the 
outdoor patio to socialize, play giant Jenga and Connect Four and brainstorm future teen activities. 
 
Members of the display committee are always planning and thinking ahead. Patrons appreciate the creativity of 
staff and frequently comment on how attractive they are. This month the displays included Cinco de Mayo, National 
Library Week, Gardening, May the 4th Be With You (Star Wars), DMX, National Small Business Month, Pride Month, 
Mental Health Awareness Month, Juneteenth, Summer Time, Father’s Day, Eric Carle, Music, National Poetry 
Month, Earth Day, and Autism Awareness Month.  Our YPL Library blog webpage hosted entries about DMX, 
Sherlock Holmes, Summer Reading Lists, Juneteenth, Jackie Robinson, Nelson Mandela, Tulsa Race Massacre, 
and Asian American and Pacific Islander month.  Michael Walsh podcast reviews have been discovered and he 
was notified that his reviews were added to greatpods.com to help the public discover podcasts of interest. 
 
 

 
Aurora Cruz 

Grinton. I Will Branch Administrator 

  



 

39 
 

 

CRESTWOOD LIBRARY  

 APRIL, MAY & JUNE 2021 

 

The Spring Quarter was a productive one with our main focus being on preparing our location for in person browsing 

that started on May 3rd.  Furniture removal, installation of screen guards, extensive weeding and shifting of collections, 

and refreshed signage all contributed to a more open library for pleasant patron browsing experiences.  Russell 

Martinez coordinated the physical building patching of our roof and custodial staff is providing excellent grounds 

maintenance. Carlos Figueroa coordinated the removal of 2/3 of our WLS computers, hard wired our scanner/fax 

machine and improved wireless access in the building. The other focus was on the visioning, planning, execution of our 

mainly virtual 2021 Summer Reading Program “Tails and Tales.” YPS Summer Reading lists were revised, joint 

sessions on Read Squared, and promotional ZOOMs and Grab and Go kits were all created.  We continue to provide 

the winning combination of hybrid service of morning contactless pick up hours and afternoon in-person browsing in 

order to meet our patron’s literacy, educational, recreational and informational needs.  

Crestwood Crew members continue to come up with creative ways to keep the library relevant to our community. Social 

Media posts, word of mouth, church bulletin postings, wellness check ins, library materials displays on themes  

including National Library Week, Earth Day, Poetry Month, Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month, Mental 

Health Awareness Month, Pride Month,  one-on-one in person computer help desks and neighbor to neighbor 

connections have all contributed to our success.  

Community connections remain at the forefront of our service model. We have continued to strengthen our NNORC 

partnership by venturing into hybrid in person/ virtual programming. Seniors and their family members of all ages have 

been using the suite of 9am wellness/ fitness, health, gardening, art and music programs as a lifeline during this difficult 

time.  We co-hosted a virtual Launch of Yonkers Youth Bureau programming via a Children’s Book Day with a bilingual 

reading of the book “You Matter” and a crafting project. Crestwood Crew facilitated the Yonkers on the Move Phase 1 

Virtual recognition ceremony and completed a series of virtual programs in conjunction with Feeding Westchester and 

Alzheimer’s Association. The Positive Psychology Reading Group expanded and will run into the fall. 

Westchester County Legislator Ruth Walters presented the entire Crestwood Library Staff with a certificate in 

recognition of their hard work and for serving the public through the COVID-19 Crisis. Librarian I Philip Poggiali 

completed The Advanced Certificate in Public Library Administration from Long Island University.  We continue to grow 

librarians – two of our library School Students Chris Loud and Stephanie Yordan  graduated this quarter. 

Friends of Crestwood Library (FOCL) continue to meet virtually and provide co-funding and curation for online and “take 

it to make it” programs.  They added a virtual History Lovers BookClub to our program offerings.  Library staff hosted 

their virtual annual meeting where a new slate of officers was elected.  President MaryAnn Penzero and I were awarded 

a grant from the Junior League of Bronxville to extend YPL Birding resources and programming. 

This quarter, the Branch Manager met virtually with Alisa Holland from New York-Presbyterian Lawrence Hospital, 

Crestwood Historical Society & FOCL Boards, WJCY administration and tutors, YPS Superintendent Dr. Quezada, YPS 

librarians, teachers, parents and students, YPIE staff and teens and worked with Celeste Hughes from the Scouts. 

Patrons from communities throughout Westchester County are visiting us virtually and physically. They appreciate our 

strong ZOOM offerings along with being open with the provision of essential services such as printing, reference, 

readers’ advisory, browsing, and being a cool destination. We continue to serve Yonkers and look forward to resuming 

more of our treasured in-person programs and services.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted by Z. Baird, Crestwood Library Branch Manager 



 

40 
 

 

CUSTODIAL DEPARTMENT 
APRIL, MAY, JUNE 2021 

 
 
In this quarter, my staff in all three facilities have been focused on constant disinfecting of high touch areas 
multiple times daily. We will continue this practice for the foreseeable future. 
 
Crestwood 
 
All newly painted outdoor furniture was placed and secured in appropriate areas. 
After being informed by Crestwood staff of a leak in the ceiling in the Mystery Room that was thought to be a 
clogged gutter turn out to be a hole in the roof beneath a gutter. I put up a tarp temporarily until an emergency 
repair could be made. That temporary repair was made a few days later by T&L Contracting. Once the roof was 
temporarily repaired they then replaced the damaged sheetrock, taped, patched and painted the entire Mystery 
Room. T&L Contracting also built and painted a sheetrock wall behind the Children’s Room help desk to cover the 
exposed heating pipes.  
 
Will  
 
Mackenzie automatic door repair has replaced the aging upper lobby doors. All automatic doors are now working 
great.   
 
Johnson Controls finally provided up with the quote to repair the oil leak in our chiller and North state Mechanical 
to provide a quote to repair the leaking A.C. Chiller, Unfortunately the chiller will have to be shut down for four day 
to make that repair so the repair will be scheduled for the fall when the air conditioning is not in use.  In late June 
we did have another issue with the chiller, Johnson controls had to be called in to make that repair .                                                                                                                                                  
The repair to A.C. 3 (Fine Arts area) has been completed. 
To insure the cleanest possible air quality, all air handler filters have again been replaced with the high quality 
Merv 13 filters.  
   
Also the upgrade to the Flynn room is complete.  
 
Riverfront 
 
The quarter my staff are continuing with room upgrades, furniture removal and disposal as well as new furniture 
assembly. We’ve also been returning chairs and tables the were removed for social distancing including 
Children’s room items such as the A. B. C. area rug and slide.  
  
 
 
Staff:  
Special thanks to all Custodians helping with facility upgrades! 
  
   
  
                                                                                     Russell Martinez 
       Supervisor of Custodians 
 
 
 

 
  



 

41 
 

 

TECHNICAL PROCESSING DEPARTMENT 
APRIL, MAY, JUNE 2021 

 
 
 
The Tech. Processing Department has been working this quarter to order, process, and link the books for the 
summer reading programs. With the summer reading lists refreshed this year, there was a great number of books 
to be processed before the end of the school year. Everything that was received was processed and sent to the 
departments as quickly as possible. The only titles left are the ones that are still backordered with the vendors.   
 
 
Even though the summer reading books took a majority of our time, we were still able to keep up with the other 
needs of the departments. All av materials were processed as they were received and current fiction and 
nonfiction titles also were prepared for patron use. It was a very busy spring. 
 
 
The Periodicals and Continuations list has been revised and sent to the departments for their review. Any 
additions and/or deletions will be made for the 2022 subscription year. 
 
 
The Baker & Taylor Book Leasing Program continues to provide shelf ready new books with all three branches 
using their monthly quotas to obtain titles for their collections. These titles are then returned when they are no 
longer popular circulating items. 
 
 
Tech Processing accommodates all requests from the departments for information, processed materials, and 
orders using whatever resources are necessary and available. Contacting and working with vendors is a large 
part of our work. 
 
 
 
 
Mary DiChiara 
Technical Processing Dept. 
  



 

42 
 

 

  



 

43 
 

BOOK STOCK 

FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2021 
  

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month         147,446  

Number of volumes added this month                 873  

TOTAL         148,319  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month                 904                            

TOTAL VOLUMES RIVERFRONT LIBRARY         147,415   152,848 

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month        149,795  

Number of volumes added this month             1,085  

TOTA L          150,880  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month              1,415  

TOTAL VOLUMES GRINTON I. WILL BRANCH         149,465   149,133 

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month           29,589  

Number of volumes added this month                  176            

TOTAL           29,765  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month                      0  

TOTAL CRESTWOOD BRANCH           29,765     27,185 

 

TOTAL VOLUMES IN YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
       326,645   329,166 

 

RIVERFRONT LIBRARY           2021     2020
     2003 

 
 

GRINTON I. WILL BRANCH          

 

 

CRESTWOOD BRANCH        

 
 


